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Strategic report for the year ended 31 July 2021

The directors present their
strategic report on the
group for the year ended
31 july 2021,

Review of the business

The principal activity of the group is the provision of educational, recruitment and marketing
services for international students through subsidiary undertakings and in partnership via joint
ventures with universities.

The subsidiary and associated undertakings of the group are listed in Note 25 to the
financial statements.

The principal activity of the company in the year under review was that of the provision of
marketing, management and other corporate services including to the company’s joint ventures
ard direct recruitment of students o1 behalf of partrers and affiliates

The INTQ group specialises in large-scale long-term partnerships that support and drive leading
universities' internationalisation goals. Increasingly INTO is also delivering growth through

its direct entry business recruiting for university partners Through these partnerships and
contracts, INTO expands opportunities for students to pursue higher education, investing in the
resoufces, systems, and processes to reach, recruit, retain and support international students
through tne provision of a first-class student expenence either via ore of 15 joint venture
partners or a university partner.

Stucents with INTC benefit from un-versity desigrned and delivered pragrammes, highly
supportive learning environments and state-of-the-art learning and living spaces while enjoying
full access to thelr hest university's facilties, rescurces, and services. Universities benefit from
access to resources and global reach beyond that which an individual institution could achieve on
its own,

Results and performance

In common with many businesses, the reduction in international student mebility due to
COVID-19 significantly impacted operations and revenues globally. The group worked to
trans'tion all courses online in a sho period of tme a~d has continued tc offer both online or
in country education dependent on the location. The group remains debt free and entered the
pandemic with strong cash reserves and so has been able to navigate through the disruption
caused for examole by the closure of visa offices, testirg centres ard the implementation of
significant travel restr ctions. The g-ou implemented cash protection and cast saving Measures
to ensure that it mitigated some of the impact and enters the next financial year in a swong
position despite the disruption that the temparary drop inintematicnal student mobility
presents. As students continue to seek out new opportunities, albeit via a mixture of oniine
and in person delivery, this report reflects on hows the group, together with 1s partners, has
responded to the changes.

The results of the group for the year, as set out on pages 19 to 24, show that overall
performance for FY21 was significanty impacted ty the COVID-19 pandernic but this was
minimised due to the quick and decisive measures taken to respond. The results show turnover
down 23% to £77.058k (2020: £100,456k) Management monitor and review the business an a
constant foreign exchange basis incuding the group's share of joint venture performance. On this
basis adjusted turnover is also down 40% to £119,309k (2020: £197,514k) and net EBITDA is
down £36,361k toaloss of £14.538k {2020 profitof £21,723k) The group and share of joint
ventures operating loss was down £30,628k from the prior year at a loss of £20,820k (2020
profit of £9,808k). The sharehoicers’ furds for the group total £13.358k (2020: £35,747k).

The group has a £40m revolving credit facil ty with revised covenamts 1o help 1o provide flexiblity
as required during the period. As at 31 July 2021 none of the facility was drawn.
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New partnership with the University of Western Australia

Despite the challenging environment INTO continues to look 10 the future and as such INTO was
delighted to announce a new partnership with the University of Western Australia to support the
university with its UwWA College proposition. This partnership will be recruiting from FY22 and
wa are confident that th s new regio~ for INTO will ieave it well positiored to capitalise anits
position as the pandemic eases.

St Louis University strategic review
Subsequent to the year end, INTO's shareholding in INTO SLULLC increased to LOQ%.
Consequently, the entity will be accounted for &3 & subsidiary in FY22.

Newcastle University INTO London

At the end of November 2020 INTO agreed to retire as @ member of Newcastle University INTO

London LLP and this was handed over to the university's ownership, INTO therefore disposed of

its sharenold.ng as at that date and recognised a profit on dispesal of £3,958k inrelation to this,
which included a contribution towards the group's cngoing lease commitments in London.

INTO Newcastle strategic review

INTO's shareholding in INTO Newcastle University LLP increased in December 2020 by 1% to
51%. As a censeguence, the entity is accounted for as substdiary, with a 49% minority interest,
from 1 December 2020.

INTO Glasgow Caledonian University strategic review

INTO and Glasgow Caledonian University (GCU) alse made a decision to change the focus of
the partnership to direct entry and as such no pathway programmes were offered via the jaint
venture after September 2020,

Investing in systems and service

In this period of change the group has continued to invest in areas that it believes will allow 1t to
thrive in the long term. Investment in new technologies continues to be a key strategic focus for
the coming year. It ensures we better serve our partners and students and enables us to drive
our operating margins through a more detailed understanding of the student journey and student
experience aligned with our core business valugs. As INTO drives increasing volumes from its
direct entry business, with both joint venture partners and increasingly other university partners,
systems development to suppert this growing area of the business is key and will be a focus over
the next period.

Office for Students

INTO University Partnerships was registered in September 2020 with the Office for Students, as
the new regulator in relation ta its English centres, INTO University Partnerships must therefore
aprly the accounts direction published by the Office for Students ini its accounts for year ending
31 July 2022 (as the first inancial year ending more than 12 months from registrazion).
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Key performance indicators ("KPIs")

The Board manitors progress against the company’s sirategy by reference to the following KPls:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Adjusted turnover * 119,309 197,514
Net EBITDA™* (14,638} 21723
Adjusted EBITOAM {6,567} 24885
Underlying group and share of joint ventures operating profit (22,881} 15430
Student satisfaction™ 94% N/A
Cash 20,462 283992

Adjusted turrover s calculated as statatory turncer pus the gralps share of joint venture turncver This helps NTO 10
ersure it I1s measunig the valLe we deliver {0 our Partness Tunover s ad Lsted to remove discentinued operaticrs and
the prios year s preserted at current yea- foreign excharge rates

Met EBITDA is a metnc ased by management o assess the Lndetying oerformance of the business. This metnc ad-usts for

4
H

ron-coterminous yea: ends and ather timing moverrents ard 1s measared at current year foreign exchange and includes
grc.Jo and share of jo.nt ventures,

Ad usted EBITDA In additior to the adjustrments above. this metric also adjusts for losses incured for hoth new
partmersn ps &1d products, one off items and board costs, which far d.stort prefisabdity This metnic s also measured at
current year fereign exChange and inCludes group and share af joinT yentures

**=* Ths was nct undertacen 'n te pror year due to COVID-13 makirg 1t difficult to run the survey.

.
H
H

2021 2020
£'000 £000
Turnover 77,058 100,456
Share of jpint venture turngver 44913 101,605
Adjust prior year at current year foreign exchange rates - {4,431}
Adjust for discontinued operations {see Strategic report) (2.662) (116}
Adjusted turncver (at constant foreign exchange rates) 119,309 197514
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Croup and share of joint ventures operating {loss) / profit (20,820) 3,808
Add: group and share of jaint ventures administrative exceptional (2,061} 5622
(credit)/charge
Add: depreciation and amortisation 4,751 4416
Add: share of joint ventures' depreciation and amortisation 2,391 2,060
Adjustment for non-coterminous year end and other timing 1,101 878
moyements
Adjustment to current year foreign exchange rates - (1.161)
Net EBITDA (at constant foreign exchange rates) (14,638} 21,723
Board and ore off costs 2,281 779
New partnership and product start-up losses 5,790 2,393

Adjusted EBITDA (at constant foreign exchange rates) {6,567} 24,895
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The INTO group olanned for and managed a significant reductionin student volumes due to

the COVID-19impact in FYZ L. Statutory group turnover decreased 23% to £77,058k (2020
£100,456k). Adjusted turnover which includes the group’s share of joint venture turnover, stated
at constant foreign exchange rates decreased 40% to £115,308kin 2021 (2020: £197,51 4k).

Underlying group and share of joint ventures operating 1oss in the year was £22881k, a decrease
of £38,31 1k on the prior year (2020, profit of £15,4304.

Net EBITDA, measured at current year foreign exchange rate, is a loss of £14,638k, a decrease of
£36,361k on the prior year (2020 [21,723k)

The year end cash nalance was £20,462k (7020 £28,952k) “he prior year figura included £10m
of cash drawn on the reveolving Credit facility which was subsequently repaid. The groups ongoing
focus an cash management can be seen in the fact that if the E10m facility cashis removed in
the prior year the group cash actually increased despite the reduced forward cash received as at
year end for future courses due o the impact of COVID-19.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The process of risk acceptance and risk management is addressed through & framewaork of
policies, procedures and internal controls. All colices are subject te Board approval and ongoing
review by management, Compliance with regulation, legal and ethical standards is a high
prionty for the group and the group finance department take on animportant oversight role

in this regard. The Audit Committee is responsible for satisfying itself that a proper internal
control framework exists to manage financial risks ard the contrals operate effectively Risks
are monitored by the management board on an ongoing basis and actions taken to mitigate
these risks when appropriate via risk registers which are updated quarterly for each area of the
business highlighting the action plans associated with any high risks.

The directors consider the following to be principal risks and uncertainties facing the company

« global pandemic and the consequent impact on the ability of international students to travel;

» global economic recession;

= changes to government regulations, part.cutarly those affecting student vsas, and

« natural disasters, acts of terrorism and the consequent impact on the atility of international
students to travel.

The Board actively monitors these risks an an on-going basis. The impact of the global pandemic
and the mitigation and actions taken have been discussed elsewhere in this report. The Board
belisves that high quality student education remains a priority for parents during recession and
therefore works 10 develop the product portfolio to ensure that INTO remains a educator of
choice in the event of any downturn. New initiatives are constantly being developed to attract
a1d retain high quality stucents and the courses the grous offers are reviewed tc ensure that
they remain refevant and competitive,

Government regulations in both the countries that INTO recruit students from and the countries
students’ study in, are monitored and the impacts of any changes assessed and understood. As
the group has a portfolio of countries in bath its recruitment markets and education markets
the impact of any one change is lessened. The Board has continued to pursue a strategy of
diversifying in both markets to ensure this continues to be the case.

Any items which impact students’ willingness or ability to travel internationslly; be those natural
disasters, terrorism or the general openness of a country for international students impact the
group. The directors keep abreast of these risks through market awareness, building robust
working relationships with partners and developing a strong senior management team and react
to these market forces as deemed appropnate in each location.
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COutlook

In light of the continuing temporary reduction in internationa! student mability due to LOVID-19,
INTO anticipate 2n ongairg reduction in firancia. performance in the year ending 31 July 2022
The group has prepared a plan based on student volumes continuing to recover but still being
reduced from pre COVID levels in the shart term, and nave worked with our partners, staff and
barkers 1o respond to this. INTQ enters the year in a stiong position due te the guick mitigating
actions taken to reduce costs, preserve cash raserves and ensure The group has significant
liquidity available as required. These measures and careful monitoring of the mitigatinn plan
delivery will continue into FY 22 which should enable INTO to continue to invest in new products,
recruitment, and technology to help ensure the future business will thrive. Surveys show

that students continue 1o demand high quality international education opportunities and as
such the Board believes that INTO is well pasitioned to respond ta the market when student
mobility increases.

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory dutiesin
accordance with s172 (1) Companies Act 2006

The directors consider, both individually and collec tively, that they have acted in the way they
consider in good faith would promate the success of the group for the benefit of its members as
a whale (having regard to the stakeholders and matters set out in s172{1)(a-f) of the Act) in the
decisions taken during the year ended 31 July 2021 and in creating the future business plans
(the "business plans’):

» INTO University Partnershizs’ business plans are designed o have a long-tarm beneficial
impact on the group and to contribute toits success by providing high quality international
education 1o our students and aliowing aur partners to meet their internationalisation aims.

»  Qur employees are fundameantal to the delivery of the business plans, and we &im 10 be a
responsible and attractive employer in our a2proach 1o pay and the benefits our employees
received and the opportunities they have to develop their careers. During the year work was
started on a new employee value proposition to articulate this commitment to both existing
employees and potential new employees.

» INTO University Partnerships business plans rely on developing long term relationships
with suppliers and custorners, enabling the Greup to gain a detalled understanding of their
requirements and priorities. INTO aim to act responsibly and fairty in how we engage with
all stakeholders and partnership is ingrained in our business operations and processes. The
COVID-15 pandemic has meant changes to some of our partnership models but due to the
relationsh ps INTO Pave built with our university partners the group have been ab e to flexiby
change the model to respond to the changing requirements of our partners,

« INTG University partnership considers the impact of the group's operations on the community
and the environment. All employees can take to up to 3 paid days per year to velunteer at a
non-profit organisation of their choice in order to contribute to either their local community o
3 cause that is important to them.

» As directors our intention is 1o behave respansibly and ensure that management operate
the business with high standards of conduct and governance in order to ensure that our
sharehoiders benefit fram the delivery of the INTO Group’s susiness plans.
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Appraved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

. - 12/2021
Sir David €astweosd 15712/
Sir David Eastwood, Non Executive Chairman Date
a [ SUIL:!,S 15/12/2021

John Sykes, Deputy CEQ Date
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 july 2021

The directors present their
annual report together with
the audited consolidated
financial staterents of the
group and company for the
year ended 31 July 2021

Matters covered in the strategic report

In accordance with Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Report) Regulations 2013, the group has chosen to include g Strategic Report. The
information in this report concerns the business review, principal risks and uncertainties and
future developments.

Future developments

Plegse see Stralegic Report for details.

Results and dividends

Tha loss for the financial year amounted to £23, 116k (2020: profit of £6,902<) T-e drectors dic
not pay a dividend in the year (020 £6,693k).

Financial risk management

The group is exposed to foreign exchange risk through the ownership of subsidiaries and joint
venture operations in North America and Asia and the income generated in these regions.

In order to mitigate part of the risk in relation to this income certain forward exchange
contracts have been entered into as described in the accounting pelicies and Note 18 to the
financial statements.

The group has a £40m revolving credit face ity witnits bankers The finanaigl commitments
In relation to this facility are as disclosed in Note 20. Given the current low rates of interest
available, the board cons.der the group’s exposure ~o fluctuations ininterest rates nct to be
signifizant at the present time, but this s kept under continual reviews.

The bozrd does nat consider the graup tc be subject to significant cash flow or liquidity risk and,
aside from the faclities above, does rat actively use any complex dinancial instrumerts as part of
its inanaal nsk management. [t1s expased 1o the usual credit risk and cash flow sk assodiated
with selling an credit and manages this through credit cantral procedures,

Directors

The directors of the company who were in affice dur ng the year and up tc the date cf signing
the financial statements were.

A Colin

[0S Eastwood

{ CLatham {resigned 31 October 2021)
| T Leeds

C | Mairs

S G Smale

| B Sykes

Company registration number
The company registration number is 05507863, The company is a limited company incorporated
in the United ingdom. The company's registered office s detaled on page 3.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that
the group will continue 1o be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future

Afrer considering the cash flow pro ections for the twelve months from the date these financial
statements were issued for approval, the directors helieve the group kas sufficient funds to meet
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its ‘iab lities as they fall due and have accordingly prepared the financial statements or a going
concern basis.

The COVID-19 crisis has significantly impacted t1e internatioral education sector and caused
significant uncertainty over the 2bilizy of the group 1o recruit students ard more generally
student mobility, Management have taken steps to transfer the group and joint ventures courses
online whilst maintaining the quaiity of education offered e students toth samote.y and, where
travel regulations permit, in person Management have 3.50 ta<en steps o maintain the finandial
resilience of the group in the short and long term through diligent liquidity planning including
renegotiating the credit facilities with its bankers

As a result, this uncertainty has been considered as part of the groups assessment of the going
concern basis in the preparation of the fnancial statements In preparing this analysis the board
have considerad the group's ability to meet its liabilities based on various jevels of reductions

in student numbers, as well as a number of cost mitigation strategies that can and have

been employed.

The group has a £40m revolving credit facility with HSBEC Bank plc which was renegotiated in the
year based on the expected impact of COVID-19, This renegotiation means that a breach of the
oniginal covenant tests for the period to 31 October 22 will not be an event of default as long

as a minimum EBITDA is met on a last 12 month basis Management will renegotiate this facility
beyond this period at an appropriate time. As the current modelling does net require usage of
this facility beyond the currently agreed period this is not deemed to impact the going concern of
the group.

Rased on these circumstances, the Board believes that it remains appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on the going corcarm basis,

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the directars have the benefit of anincerin ty which
15 a qualitying third party indemnity provision as defined by Secton 234 of the companies Act
2008, The ndemrity was in force throughout the ast financial year and is currently in force The
compary also purzhased and mantaned throughout the financ al year di-ectors’ and officers’
liability insurance in respect of itself and its directors.

Political and charitable donations

INTQ University Partnerships allocates a proportion of its profts to fund the onerating costs
of INTO Civing, a charity supporting educational projects for poor and disadvantaged children
around the worid. During the year this amounted to £123,101 (2020: £129,895).

Post balance sheet events

Post balance sheet events can be found in Note 27

Environmental, social and community issues

The company is committed o the promation of environmental initiatives and minimising
the environmental impact of ts businesses. ThroLgh focusing on treating an efficient and
sustainable business the company is taking steps ta reduce its on-geing carben footprint.

The INTO group is driven by the desire to provide life-changing experiences for our students.
Mareover, the investment and additional revenue generated are helping to revitalise cur partner
universities and the local and regional economy that surrounds them. The group also works
closely with INTO Cwving, a charity that supports educational and humanitarian projects for some
of world's poorest and most disadvantaged children, The group supports INTCG Giving through
fundraising activities, and through staff volunteering their time and skills
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In 2020421, INTQ Giving donated £62,500 in support of educational, community and
hurmanitarian projects in Colombia, Quatemala, India, Indonesia, Lebanon, Nepal, Nigeria,

Uganda, Vietnam, the UK, US and Zambia. Over the past year, funds raised by INTQ employees
and students have, for example, supported an anti-sexual exploitation programme for at-risk
Cotombian schoolchildren, supported anti-racism and civil rights groups in the UK and US and girls’
education in ten countries worldwide

Statement of carbon emissions in compliance with Streamlined Energy and
Caibon Reporting (SECR)

The group presents the following details of its carbon usage, covering energy use and
associated greenhause gas emissions relating to gas, electricity and transport, intensity ratios
and informaticn relating to energy efficiency actions, compliant with UK legislaticn set out

in the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) 21 January 2021. As allowed by the
regulations the summary below represents only the entities which meet the large size criteria for
the disclosure.

2021 2020

Total energy use covering electricity, gas, other fuels 4,592,537 7209058 kWwh
and transport

Total emissions generated through combustion of gas 268 505 t(0Ze

Total emissions generated through use of purchased 716 876 1(02e

electricity

Total emissions generated through use of heat and 189 121 t02e

steam

Total emissions generated through business travel - - t0Ze

Total gross emissions 1,172 1503 tC0ce

Intensity ratio (total gross emissions} 3.14 402 kglOcle
per sqft

Energy efficiency actions

The group is committed o responsible energy management and practise energy efficiency
throughout our organisation, wherever 1tis cost effective. We recognise that cumate change 1s
one of the most sericus environmental challenges currently threatening the global community
and understand we have a role to play in reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

The board has implemented the palicies below which have increased the business's energy
eficiency in the current financial year.

» Moved toincreased remote home working due to COVID-19 and extended this hybrid working
offering to non-student faung employees as part of its global flexihil ty framewaork,

» Areconsideration and reduction of the overall office space requirec 1o meet the hybrid
working arrangements of our employees, as well as the introduction of sclar panels and more
efficient 1ghting and heating across the properties of the group and its jo.nt ventures;

» Implemented new video conferencing software; and

« Asignificant reductior in travel due ta COVID-19 restrict:ons globally. This is budgeted
to continue in FY22 as the need to travel for meetings has been proven to be less of
a requirement

Methodology used in the calculation of disclosures

ESDS methodology (as specified in Complying with the Erergy Savings Opportunity Scheme
version 6, published by the Environment Agency 28/10/2019) was used in this reportin
conjunction with Government GHG reporting conversion factors.
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Employees

Consultations with employees or their representatives has continued at all levels, with the aim of
ensuring that their views are consicered when decisions are made that are likely tu affect their
interests and that ail employees are aware of the Fnancial and econam ¢ business units and the
campany as a whole. Communication with all employees continues through multiple media and
employee engagement surveys are conducted,

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind

the respective aptitudes and abililies of the applicant concerned, In the event of members of
staff becomirg disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure thar their employment with the company
continues, and the appropriate training is arranged, if required. It is the policy of the company that
the Training, career development and promation of a disabled person shoudd, as far as possible, be
identical to that of a person who does not suffer a d.sasility.

we continue to work hard to ensure a diverse and inclusive workforce is hired, retained, and can
thrive at INTO and that we take the opportunity to overcome inequity. We believe that this can
only be accomplished with a steady, sustainable, and relentless focus on initiatives that attract
diverse talent, create an inclusive culture, and develop and promote a diverse range of colleagues.
Wwa hava made signifcant progress in this area, but we are clear there 's much work still to do and
it will remain a key focus for our executive and management teams,

INTO puhlishes a gender pay gap report covering the ane entity on which INTO are reguired by
law 1o report, as well as voluntary reporting of other entities and organisations which help round
out the picture of the gender pay gap at INTO in the UK. INTO is working towards wider reperting
in this area covering all entities within the group. The fuil report can be obtained from the INTO
corparate website at L 1o oo ol Jormn e ate 87 armat O

Branches outside the UK

The following branches exist outside of the UK in addition to the statutory entities tisted in
Note 25:

« In China the regional offices in Dalian, S1anghai and Beijing are branches of Guangzhou INTO
Education L1 {incorporated in China).

» InChina thereis also a Beijing branch of DPU (Shanghai) Business Consulting Ltd (incorporated
in China).

*  Schoolapply AG has a branch based in Dubai,

«  University Access Centre Vietnam has a branch based in Hanoi.

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Repart and Directors’ Repart and the
financial statements in accordance with apalicable iaw and regulations.

Company law “equi-es the directors to prepare francial statements for each firancial year.

Under that law the directars have tc orepare the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law, inciuding FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”}. Under compary law the directors must not approve the financial statements
uriless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and prafit

or loss of the company and group for that penad In preparing these finarc.a statements, the
directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting palicies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasanable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained i the financial statemerts;

+ prepate the ‘inancial statements on the going concern 2asis ualess itis inaparoariate 1o
presumne that the company and the group will continue in business.
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate 2ccounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the firancial position of the company ard enable them ta ensure that the financia: statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also respansible for safeguarding the assets of
the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Statement of disclosure of informatien to auditers
| he directors confirm that:

« 5o far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
company's auditors are unaware; and

+ the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order 1o make
themselves aware of any relevant audit infermation and to establish that the company’s
auditors are aware of that information,

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report in accordance with applicable law
and regulations. Having taken advice from the Audit Committee, the directors consider the
annual report and the financial stateTents, taker as @ whole, provides the irformation necessary
1o assess the company's perfarmance, business madel and strategy and is fair, balanced

and understandable.

The direztors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty cf the coroorate and finarcial
information included on the company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ froT legislatior in
ather jurisdictions.

Independent auditors

The auditars, Grant Thornton U LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office anc a
resolution concerning their re-appointment will be propesed at the Board Meeting,

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

15/12/2021

Sir Dawid Eastwosd

Sir David Eastwood, Non Executive Chairman Date

5 [ SD’&LS 15/12/2021

John Sykes, Deputy CEC Date
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
INTO University Partnerships Limited

Opinion

We have aucited the financial statements of INTO University Partnerships Limited {the ‘parent
company’ and its subsidiaries (the ‘groun’) for the year ended 31 July 2021, which comprise

the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 31 |uly 2021, the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity. the
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, the Jrincipal accounting policies ard
notes to the financial statements The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable iaw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards. including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Im our ppinion, the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the grcup’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
31 July 2021 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdem Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

Wwe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs

{UKY) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
‘Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the inancial statemerts’ section of our regort. We are
independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevart to our aucit of the financial statements in the K, ncluding the FRC's Ethical
Standarc, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these
requirements. we believe trat the zudit evidence we have chtained is sufficient and appropriate
1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events cr cond tions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s
and the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report 1o the related disclosures in
the financial statemerts or, if suck disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor's opimion.
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the group or the parent company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks associated

with the group’s ang the parent company’s business made including effects arising from
macro-economic uncertainties such as Brexit and COVID-19, we assessed and challenged the
reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and the related disclosures and analysed how
those risks might affect the group’s and the parent compary's financial resources or abiliy 12
continue operations over the going concem period

Based on the work we have perfarmad, we have rotidentified any mater.al uncertainties relating
ta evants of canditions that, moividually or co-ectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's
and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern for & period of at least twelve
manths from when the firandial statements are authorsed forissue,

In zuditing the financial s:atemerts, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of account ng in the praparation of the financial statemeants s apiooriate.

The responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
‘Resporsibilities o directors for the hnandial statemerts’ section of this report
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Cther information

The directors are responsitle for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included It the annual report, cther than the financial statements and our audior's
repost thereon. Jur opinicn on the financia® statements does not cove the other info mation
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repart, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 15 materially mcensistent
with the financial statements of our knowledge obitained in the audit or ntherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether thereis a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a maternal misstatement of the otherinformation. If, based or the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

« theirformation g ven in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for
which the firancial statements are prepared is consisten? with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legai requirements.

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment cbtainedin the course of the audit, we have not identiied matera’ misstatemants
in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters inrelation to which the Companies
Act 2006 requires us torepart ta you if. in our opinion:

+ adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, of returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements are not 'n agreement with the accounting records
and returns; of

= certaindiscosures of girectars’ remuneration specited by law are not made, or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement on page 12, the directors

are responsible for the preparation of the firancial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enaple the preparation o financial statements that are free from matenat misstatement, whether
due to fraud or errcr.

In preparing the Anancial statements, the directars are resporsiole for assessing the group’s and
the parent company’s ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accaunting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company of 1o Cease Operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to ohtain reascnadle assuranice about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an
auditars report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an udit conducted in accordance with 1SAS (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence e economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of cur responsibilities for te audit of the financ.al statements s located
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: v ~onakfaclitosesoors bt e, This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Explanaticn as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

irregularities, induding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We design pracedures in line with qur responsitilities, outlined sbove, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an
audit, there is a1 unavoidadle risk that materal misstatements in the financia- statements may
not be detected, even though the audit is properly olanned and performed in accordance with the
1545 (UK),

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

« We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to
the Company and determinad that the most significant whic are directly relevant to specific
assertions in the financial statements are those relatad ta the reporting frameworks (FRS
102, the Companies Act 2006 and the relevant tax compliance regulations in the UK)
o We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risk to all engagement
team members and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations throughout the audit
* We understood how the Group is complying with those legal and regulatory frameworks by
making inguiries of management and those charged with governance. We corroborated our
inquiries through review of board minutes provided by management
» We did notidentify any matters relating to non-compliance with laws and regulation or
relating to fraud.
e W= assessed the susceptivility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by meeting with management from relevant parts of the
business to understand areas where management considered there was a susceptibility
To fraud.
= Audit procedures performed by the engagement team on the areas where fraud might
occur included:
¢ evaluation of the effact veness of management's cantrols designed 1o prevent and
detect irregularities;

« journal entrigs testing, with a focus on manual entries, unauthorised user entries and
entries determined 1o be large or relating to unusual transactions;

« [dentifying and testing related party transactions.

« Assessment of the appropriateness of the callective competence and capabilities of the
engagement team included cansideration of the engagement team's'

« understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriate training and participation

* knowledge of the industry in which the entity cperates

» urderstandng of the legal and reguiatory requirements specific 10 the entity
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»  These audit procedurss were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements were free from fraud or error, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due 1o fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resuiting from error and detecting
rrregulanties that resull from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that
result from error. as fraud may involve coilusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-comphance with laws and regulations is
frorm events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would
become aware of it.

Use of this report

This report is made sclely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
1o the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

ﬁmt Thom, Ui LLF 15/12/2021

e

Christian Heeger BSC FCA Date
Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP

Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants

Crawley
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
nded 31 july 2021

R NI P L I I LTEN RS I

Note 2021 2021 Non- 2021 2020 2020 Non-
tnderlying underlying Underlying  underlying
exceptional exceptional
items items
£000 £000 £'000 £:000 £000 £'6G00
Group turnover? 1 77058 - 77.058 100456 - 100456
Cost of sales (22,506) - {22,506) (26,164} - (26,164)
Gross profit 54,55¢ - 54,552 74,292 - 74,292
Administrative expenses 2 (66,227) (6B5)  (66,912) (60,213) (5662} {65.875)
Other income 3 1052 - 1,052 607 - 507
Profit or disposal of joirt venture 24 - 3,958 3,958
Group operating (loss) / profit 4 (10,623) 3,273 {7.350) 14685 (5662 9,024
Existing operations (10.271) 3273 (6,998) 14,884 15662) 8222
Acquisitions {352) (352) (198) - (198)
Share of cperating floss) / profit injont 11 (12.258) (1.°212) {(13.470) 744 40 784
ventures
Group and share of joint ventures (22,881) 2061  (20.820) 15430 (5622 9,808

operating (loss) / profit

Net interest and similar charges

Group 7 (3.499) - (3,499} (1,435) - (1.435)
Share of joint ventures 7 (772 - (772) (663) - {663)
{Loss) / profit on ordinary activities before (27.152) 2061  (25,091) 13332 (5622 7710
taxation
Tax cn (loss)/ profit cn ordinary activitiesof 8 2,830 {525} 2,305 (1616 932 {684)
subsidiaries
Share of joint ventures taxation 8 (330 - (330} {124} - (124)
(Loss) / profit on ordinary activities after (24652) 1536 (23116} 11582 (4650 6902
taxation
(Loss) /7 profit for the financial year (24,652) 1536 {23116} 11,5592 (4.690) 6,902
Currency trans ation difference on forzign 1,052 - 1,052 423 - 423
currency net investments
(23.600) 1536 {22,064} 12015 {4,650 7325
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent (23.431) 1536 {21,895} 12015 (4690 7325
Non-controlling interests (169} - (169) - - -
(23.600) 1,536 {22.064) 12015 (4,690) 7325

! Adjusted tumover which includes statutory turnover and share of joint ventures’ turnover was £119,308k (2020: £197,51 4k).

Please see the Strategic Report on page 6 for details of this

There 1s ro matenal differenca betwean the proft on ordinary activities befare taxaTion and the
prafit for the current and prior financial year stated above ard their histarical cost equivalents.

The notes on pages 34 12 57 farm part of these financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 July 2021

FL e e RS

2021 2020

{Restated see Note 5)
£000 £'000

Fixed assets

Intangible assets g 9,605 11.307
Tangible assets 10 6,165 5963
Investments injoint ventures 11 1,459 7.441
fnvestments 1z 150 150
Total fixed assets 17.375 24,861
Current assets
Debtors 13 71,974 65537
Prepayments and accrued income
- amounts falling due within one year 13 14172 24,533
- amounts falling due after one year 13 9,861 5543
96,007 96,013
Cash at bank and in hand 20,462 28,992
116,469 125,005
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year 14 {21.562) {19,307
Accruals and deferred income 14 {44,936) (27.201)
{66,498) {46,508)
Provisions for liabilities: Amounts falling due within one year 15 (4,862) (5,053}
Net current assets 45,109 73444
Total assets less current liabilities 62,488 98,305
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 16 (142) (10,704}
Provisions for liabilities: Amaunts falling atter more than one year 15 (1.439) (1.541)
Liabilities in respect of joint ventures 11 (47.,549) (50,318)
{49,130) (62,563)
Net assets 13,358 35742
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 1,239 1270
Share premium account 2 2
Capital redemption reserve 49 18
Hedging reserve - (B8]
Foreign exchange translation reserve 2,274 1222
Non-contralling interests (568)
Proft and loss reserve 10,362 33318
Total shareholders’ funds 13,358 35,742

“he consolidated financial statemrents on pages 19 10 57, were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf oy:

Sl.r UMA, faS{WMA« 15/12/2021 M/Vb Sb,t:.bS 15/12/2021

Sir David Eastwood, Non Executive Chairman Date John Sykes, Deputy CEO Date

The notes on pages 34 to 57 form part of these fnancial statements,
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 july 2021
R o e U7 AR 3
Note 2021 2020
£'000 £:000
Investments 12 36,067 36,066
36,067 36,066
Current assets
Debtors 13 8,004 6,236
Prepayments and accrued income 13 845 870
8,849 7106
Cash at bank and in hand 200 189
9,049 7.255
Creditors: Amounts falling due within ane year 14 {7,476} (5,389)
Accruals and deferred income 14 (1.617) {594)
(9.093) (3,983}
Provisions for liabilities: Amounts falling due within one year 15 (1,528) (3.838)
Net current liabilities {1,572) (6,526)
Total assets less current liabilities 34,4595 29,540
Net assets 34,495 29,540
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 1,239 1270
Share premium account 2 l
Capital redemption reserve 49 18
Hedging reserve (8g]
Profit and loss reserve 33,205 28,338
Total shareholders’ funds 34,495 29,540

As permitted by secticn 408 of the Companies Act 2C06, no separate profit and loss account
presentec iniespect of the parent company. The result for the financial year erded 31 July 2021
of the parent company was a £4 876k profit {2020; £1,127k loss).

The fnancial statements on pages 19 1o 57 were approved by the Board of Directors and stgned
on its behalf by

Sirr Dawid Eastwesd 15/12/2021

Sir David Eastwood, Non Executive Chairman Date

9 ( SDIELS 15/12/2021

John Sykes, Deputy CEO Date

The notes or Jages 34 1o 57 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 July 2021

Called Share Capital Hedging Translation Non- Profit and Tota!
up share premium redemption reserve reserve controlling loss reserve shareholders’
capital reserve interests funds
£'000 £000 £000 E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 1 August 2019 1,271 2 17 - 799 - 33,109 35,198
Profit for the finaricial year - - - - - - 6902 6907
Movements in relation to {1 - 1 - - - -
the Management Incentive
Plan
Dividends - - - - - - (6,693) {©.693)
Movement in Hedging - - - (88) - - (88)
reserve
Translation Reserve - - - - 423 - - 423
As at 31 July 2020 1,270 2 18 (88) 1222 - 33,318 35,742
Proft/(loss) for the finareal - - - - - (169) (22.947) (23116)
year
Movements in relation tg (31} - 31 - - - 9) 9
the Management Incentive
Plan
Movement in Hedging - - - 88 - - - 88
reserve
Acguisition of non- . - - - - {399} - (399)
controlling interests (see
Note 24)
Translation Reserve - - - - 1052 - - 1052
As at 31 July 2021 1,239 2 49 - 2,274 (568) 10.362 13,358

The credit to the capital redemption reserve during the year represents the buy back of shares
associated with the management incentive scheme.

The notes on pages 34 to 57 form part of these finandial statements
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 July 2021

Calted up Share Capital Hedging Profit and Total

share premium redemption reserve loss reserve shareholders’

capital reserve funds

£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

As at1 August 2019 1,271 2 17 - 36,158 37,448

Luss [or the financia year - - - - (1127 (1127

Movements in relation to the Management (1} - 1 - - -
Incentive Plan

Dividends - - - - (6,693) (6,693)

Movement in Hedging reserve - - - (B8) - {88)

As at 31 July 2020 1,270 2 18 (88) 28,338 29,540

Fraft far the financial year - - - - 4876 4876

Movements in relation to the Management {31} - 31 - (9) (9)
Incentive Plan

Mavement in Hedging reserve - - - 88 - 88

As at 31 July 2021 1,239 2 49 - 33,205 34,495

The credit to the capital redemption reserve during the year represents the buy back of shares
associated with the management incentive scheme,

The notes on pages 34 to 57 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 july 2021

[Prge,mng o e ETE

OS]

2021 2020
£000 (Restated- Note 5)

£000

Cash flows from operating activities

{Loss)/ profit for the finarc al year (23.116) 6,902
Depreciation charge 1617 1238
Amortisation of intangibles 3,134 3,178
impairment of intangtbles 849 384
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 169 -
Loss on dispesal of tangible assets 132

Profit on disposal of jzint venture (3.958)

Share based payment charge (9) -
Net interest and similar charges 3,499 1435
Share of loss / (profit) for the hinancial year in joint venzures 13,470 (784)
Share of interest payable by joint ventures 772 663
Taxaticn (1.975) 808
{Increase) / Decrease in debtors {1,007) 4,385
Increase / (Decrease) in creditors 7,284 (140673
Cash from operations 861 4143
Income tax credit / {paid) 1,764 (2,255)
Net cash inflow from cperating activities 2,625 1888

Cash flow from investing activities

Interest received 1,600 1823
Interest paid (1,645) (1048
Purcrase of tangible fixed assets (927) (2433}
Purchase of intangible fixed assets (4,452) (5,520
Acquisition of subsidiary - (225}
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 1,013 15
Dividends received from joint ventures 4,600 1999
Net cash inflow / {outflow) 189 (5.385}
Cash flow from financing activities

Dividends paid - (6,693}
(Decrease) / increase in borrowings {10,048) 16,538
Net cash {outflow) / inflow from financing activities (10,048) 3,845
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (7.234) 344
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 28,992 30,237
Exchange adjustments (1.296) (1,589)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20,462 289982
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Cash at bank and in hand 20,462 28,992
Cash and cash equivalents 20,462 28997

The company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102 and has elected to take the
exemption urder FRS 102, para 1.12(b) nct to present the company statement of cash flows,
The notes on pages 34 10 57 form part of these fnancial statements
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Principal accounting policies

General information

The company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England. The address
of its reg stered offica is Crne Gloucester Place, Brighton, United K ngdom, BN 4AA,

Statement of compliance

The group and individual financial statements of INTO University Partnerships Limited have been
prepared in compliance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
standard 102, ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland’ {FRS 1627 and the Companies Act Z006.

Basis of preparation

These consalidated and separate financial statements are prepared on & going concern bas:s,
under the histarica: cost convention, 3s mod fied by the recognition of certair financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimazes
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group and
company accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the firanzial statements, a-e disclosed
on page 32.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act from
presenting :ts ind-vidual profit anc foss accourt.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistentty in both the current and
preceding periods in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the company’s
finaazl statements. These financial statements are preparec in Pounds Sterling (£) ard in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102),
issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

The functional and presentation currency of the company is considered to be Pounds Sterling (£)
hecause that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group operates.

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

INTO University Partnerships Limeted meets the definition of a qualifying entity urder FRS
102 and has therefare taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available t¢itin
respect of its separate financial statements, which are presented alongside the consclidated
financia! statements.

The company has taken advantage of the following exemptions in its individual
financia. statements

« from the financielinstrument disclosures, required under FRS 102 pa-agraphs 11 &2, 1544,
1145 1147, 11.48(a)jii), 11.48(a)iv). 11.48(b). 1148(c), 1226,1227,12.29(a), 1 2.25(b)
and 12 29A as the information is provided In the consclddatad financial statement disclosures;

» from disclosing share based payment arrangemeants, required under FRS 102 paragraphs
26.18(b), 2619 10 26.21 and £6.23. concerning its own equity instruments, as the company
financ al statements are presentad with the cansolidated financial statements and the
relevant disclosures are included therein; and

« from disclosing the company key management personnel compensation, as required by FRS
102 paragraph 33.7,

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going corcer fasis, whick assumes that
the group will continue to he able to megTits liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.
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After considering the cash fow projections ‘or the tweive manths from the date tness firancial
slatements were issyed for approval, the directors be ieve the group has sufficient funds to meet
its fiabilities as they fall due and have accordingly prepared the linancial statements on a going
concern basis.

The COVID 19 arisis has significantly impacted the international education sector a1d caused
significant uncertainty over the atility of the group tc recruit students in the coming manths.
Management have taken steps to transfer the group and joint ventures courses online and
whitst maintaining the quality of education offered tc students both remotely and, when travel
regulations permit, .n perscn. Management have alsa taken steps toc maintain the financial
resilience of the group in the short and long term through diligent liguidity planning including
securing significant -evalving credit facil ties.

As aresult, this uncertainty has been considered as part of the groups assessment of the going
concern basis in the preparation of the finandal statenents. In praparing this analysis the board
have considered the group’s ability to meet its liabilities based on various levels of reductions

in student numbers, as well as a number of cost mitigation strategies that can and have

been employed.

The group has a £40m revolving credit facility with HSBC Bank plc which was renegotiated in the
year based on the expected impact of COVID-19. This renegotiation means that a breach of the
ariginal covenant tests for the period 10 31 Cctober 22 will not be an event of default as long

as a minimum EBITDA is met on alast 12-month basis. Management will renegotiate this facility
beyond this period at an appropriate time. As the currant modefling does not require usage of
this facifity beyond the currently agreed period this is not deemed to impact the going concern of
the group.

Based on these circumstances, the Board believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the
financial statements on the going concern bass.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financ.al statements include the financial statements cf the company and its
subsidiary undertakings, together with the group's share of resufts of its jeint ventures made up
to 31 July 2021, with comparatives representing an annual year to 31 July 2020

A separate statement of comprehensive income has not been included for the company by virtue
of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

INTO USF Inc and INTO lllingis State University LLC orepare their financial statements to 30
|ure. Given non-cotermincus balance sheet dates, the share of profits and losses and net assets
in relation to these joint ventures represent the annuat period to 30 june 2021 As INTO USF
Inc and INTQ lllinois State University LLC balance sheet date is less than 3 months pricr 1o the
group’s balance sheet date, this is permitted under FRS 102,

Subsidiaries
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreaiised gains arising between the company and its
subsidianes are eliminazad in preparng the consclidated financial statements. Accaunting policies
of subsidiaries have been aligned where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group. In the parent company financial statements invastments n subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.

Investments in joint ventures

The -esults, assets andiiabilities of a jointly controlied ent ty are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
in a jointly controlied entity is carried in the balance sheet at cost, plus post-acquisition changes
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in the group's share of net assets cf the jointly controlled entity, less distributions received and
less any impairment in value of the investment. The group statement of comprehensive income
reflects the group's share of the results after tax of the j2intiy controlled entity.

Wrere necessary, ac Ustments ae made 1o finandial statements of jointly cantrofled entities to
bring the accounting policies used inta line with those of the group.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in the jointly controlled entities.

The group assesses investments in jointly cantralled entities for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverabie. If any such
ingication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is compared with its
recoverable amount, being the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, the investment Is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In the parent company financial statements irvestments in jcint ventures are accounted for at
cost less impairment.

Business combinations and goodwil
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

The cost of a business combination is the fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred
or assumed and of equity instruments issued plus the costs directly attributable to the business
combination. Where control is gchieved in stages the cost Is the consideration at the date of
each transaction.

Contingent consideration is initially recognised at estimated amount where the consideration is
probable and can be measured reliably. Where {i) the contingent consideration is not considered

probable or cannot be reliably measured but subsequently becomes probable and measurable or
fi}y contingent consideration previously measured is adjusted, the amounts are recognised as an

adjustment to the cost of the business combination.

On acquisition of a business. fair values are attributec to the identifiable assets, lailties and
contingent liabilities unless the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in which case the value

is incorporated in goodwill. Intangible assets are only recognised separately from goodwill

where they are separable and arise from contractual or other legal rights. Where the fair value of
contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed on the same basls as other
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the
purchase consideration over te fair values to the group's interest in the identifiable net assets,
liahilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

On acquisition, gocdwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGU's) that are expected 10
benefit from the combination.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and 1osses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income. Unrealised gains and losses on intercompany balances are treated as
investing activities and therefore included in the statement af comprehensive income within net
interest receivable and similar credits / charges,
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Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Pounds Sterting at exchange
rates at the reporting date, The income and expenses of foreign cperations are translated to
Pounds Sterling at the average rate for the year Exchange ciffeences asing cn retranslation
of foreign operations from the cpening / average rate 1o the closing rate are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are included in the translation reserve.

Intangible assets

Computer software is amortised over its estimated useful life, of 4 - 7 years, on a straight
lime basis

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of a subsidiary over the group's share of
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired

Agency relationships acquired as part of acquisitions of businesses are capitalised separately
from goodwill as intangible assets if their value can be measured reliably on initial recognition
and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attnbutatle to the asset
will flow to the group

Goodwill and agency relationships are amortised on @ systematic basis over its useful fife, which
is 10-15 years [tis believed that the useful life of L0-15 years is appropriate as the contacts in
the accuired entities are expected 1o gererate henefits over at least this per od.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the tusiness combinat.on in which the goocwi |l arcse,

Assets under course of construction represents software being developed by the group and its
subsidiaries

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment loss. Software development is capitalised in accordance with FRS102 section 18.8H,
Development costs are only recognised once the group has the ability to demonstrate the
tachnical feasibiity of a software Jroject, that the project will generate future economic benefits,
and the availlanility of technical, inancial and other rescurces to complete the project Costs that
do not fali within this criteria, including research costs and post-completion maintenance costs,
are taken directly to the Statement of comprehensive income.

At each reporting date an assessment is conducted to review if there is any indication of
impairment. If there is objective evidence of impairment an impairment loss is recognised In the
statement of comprehensive income.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at hrstorical cost less accumulated depreciatior and impairment
Historical cost includes expenditure directly attributable to acguisition, Subsequent costs are
included In the assats’ carrying amount of recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when 1t s probatie that the future econcmic benefits associated with the item will flow ta the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Estimated depreciatior s made on the fallowing basis to write off the assets over ther
estimated useful economic lives:

tand freehold Not depreciated
Buildings freehold 2% straight line
Leasehold improvements Life of the lease
Fixtures and fittings 20% - 25% straight line

Office equipment 20% - 25% straight line
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Useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is impaired immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Employee benefits

The groun provides a range ¢f benefits to employeas, includirg annual borus arrangeTants, paid
holiday arrargemerts anc defined contriaution persinn plars

* Short term benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and otner sime'ar non-manetary benefits, are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the service is received,

= Defined benefit multi employer plans
Certain of *he employees of the group's jsint venturss are membears of defined beneit
pension schemes as a result of their being transferred from the partner university to the joint
venture under TUPE arrangements when the joint ventures were formed. Liabilities in respect
of each joint venture's required contribuzions to defict recovery plans are included witir
the share of iabilities in relation to joint ventures at the balance sheet date. In refation to a
scheme administered by Newcastle University it has been agreed that liabilities relating to
the recovery of this defic t will be met by the sharehotding companies of NUINTO Limited, a
related company which holds these employees’ contracts of employment. A provision of £42k
has therefore baen provided in the fnancial statements recognising the group's hiability in
resoect of this deficit,

* Annual bonus plan
The group operates a number of annual bonus plans for employees. An expense is recognised
in the profit and loss account when the group has 3 legal or constructive obligation to make
payments under the plans as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

» Long term incentive plans
The company operates a long term incentive plan for certain key employees and Directors
which is accounted for under the provisions of FRS102. See Note 23 for details of
the scheme.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a part to the contractual
provisions of the instrurrent. All financial assets and liabiities are measurad at trarsaction

price and continue 1o be recognised at that amount uniess evidence exists as to any

potential impairment.

The group has entered into a number of forward currency contracts inorder to mitigate the
foreign exchange risk arising on US dollar receipts in respect of marketing fees receivable from
Its o Nt ventures, These amounts are accounted for using casnflow hedge acccunting Prior to
maturity, the value of these contracts is recognised on the balance sheet within current assets
and liabilities at their Mark To Market value, A1 assessment is made of the effectiveness of
each contract as to whether they relate to highly probably forecast transactions, and therefore
whether hadge azcounting can be applied. Profits and losses are taken ic the hedging reserve
to the extant that the nedge s effecive, and directly to the profit andfoss account where the
hedge is considerad 1o be ineffeCtive.

Bas.c financial assets, including trade and other recelvab es, cash and bark balancas and
investments, and bas:c financial liabilit es, including trace and other payables, are recogrised at
fair value which is normally the transaction price.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue is shawn net of value-added
tax and amounts due to third parties and after elimination of revenue within the group.

Amaounts invoiced in advance of services being performed are deferred within creditors due in
less than one year until the service is performed. Where services are performed prior 1o amounts
being invoiced, amounts are recognised as accrued inceme within debtors.

Tuition

Tuition fees represent all fees chargeable 1o students or their sponsors, attributable to

the current accounting year, net of discounts. Tuition fees are attributed to accounting
periods based on the tuiticn actually provided in that penod. The costs of any fees waived or
discounts are deducted from tuition fee income.

Accommodation
Accommaodation fees are spread cver the period of accupancy to which they relate.

Catering and other ancillary services

Catering income represents the sale of food and beverages from ancillary catering facilities
and other services performed on students’ behalf Revenues are recognised in the period that
they are provided.

Management and corporate services fees

Marketing services, management services and other corporate sesvices are provided by the
group toits joint ventures, Such turnover is recagnisedin the accounting period in which the
services are provided. The majority of these fees are tased on services performed over a fxed
period of time (monthly or quarterly) and are spread evenly over that period

Prograssion fees

The group receives contractual payments from certain Universities in relation to students
progressing 1o join the University from INTQ study centres and/or from direct applicants
joining the University as a result of marketing activity conducted by the group.

For students applying directly 1o join the University turnover is recognised at the point
students accept and become entitled to a place to study at the University and is recognised
for afl future payments in full less a provision for estimated student withdrawals.

For students progressing from INTO study centres turnover is recognised based on the
current student cohort and historic student progression data from individual study centres,
Turnover is recognised for all future payments in full less a prowision for estimated student
withdrawais, discounted where appropriate.

In some cases, INTO has additional obligations retating to the receipt of progression fees,
relating to the provision of scholarships to pathway students. In those cases revenues are not
recagnised until those obligations are met

Placement / Commission fees

Contractual payments are received from certain education providers in relation to placing
students where the group acts as agent, Such turnover is recognised at the point students
accept and became entitled to g place 1o study and only the agency commission dug is
recognised as revenue. The Group also receives marketing fees, that are based on student
numbers, fram its joint ventures which are accounted for as cormmission fees and recognised
over the pericd of tuition.

Student deposits and credit balances

The group holds credits onits balance sheet inrelation 1o deposits and other credits

held on behalf of students. In some cases in spite of multiple attempts to contact the
relevant individuals the group is unable to identify an account into which to return the
funds. These amounts are released to the Statement of comprehensive income after they
become refundable.
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+ Rental income
Rental income receivable is recognised in the period to which it relates.

+ Otherincome
Otherincome represents government grants recelved under the Coronavirus Job retention
scheme. The amounts are recognised using the accrual mode!

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit 2nd loss accounl on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.

Contingent liabilities

Because of the nature of the business i1 is possible that from time to time the group wili enter
inta disoutes with thirc Darties, Contingent | abi1ties are disclosed if the possibrity of an cutflow
of economic benafit to sett'e the obligation is more than remaote.

In anproving these financial statements, the Board of Diractais have confirmed ther view thatno
further provisions need to be hooked in respect of such matters.

Share based payments

The group provides share based payment arrangements 1o certain employees and Directors.,
These arrangements include shares which have distribution rights in the event of a share sale or
capital return. Equity settled arrangements are measured at fair value at the date of the grant.
The fair value Is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period. The amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted 1o reflect the actual number of shares that wil vest. Cash settled
arrangements are measured at fair value and the fair value of the liability is recalculated at each
reporting date. The Directors take into account various factors, including the scheme rules, the
award value and the likelihood of a qualifying event when deciding whether 1o recognise an
expense in relation to these arrangements

Taxation

Current tax including UK corporate 1ax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected 1o be
paid using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to
pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance
sheet date and the reversal of these items is deemed likely. Deferred tax is provided at amounts
expected to be paid using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date that are expected to appiy to the raversal of the Timirg differerce. Deferred tax is

not provided for unused tax {gsses due to current uncertainties surrounding the reversal of the
underlying differences,

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes cash in hiand, deposits held at call with banks, and other shart-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less

Administrative exceptional items {non-underlying)

The group ciassifies certair one-off charges or credits that have a material mpact on the

groun's Ainance results as ‘exceptional items’ These are disclosed separataly to provide further
urders:anding of the financial performance of tne group, included in the "nor-underlying” column
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive inccme.
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Agent Commission

Commission paid to third party agents, where the entity has a right to recover the payments in
the event the student leaves before the completion of their course, are deterred on the balance
sheet and recognised over the same period as the related student revenue. Payments made
where the entity has no recourse to recover them are expensed as they are earned by the

third party.

Dilapidations

Provisions for dilapidations represent management's best estimate of liahiltties in respect of
dilapidations clauses likely to arise on expiry of the group’s property leases. These amounts are
included within provisions for liabilities and charges and are discounted at an appropriate rate.

Share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve

The called up share capital reserve represents the nominal value of the shares issued. Ordinary
shares are class fied as equity. The share premium reserve includas the cremium on issue of
equity shares, net of any issue costs Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, against share premium. The
capital redemption reserve is a reserve generated from the buy back of shares associated with
the management incentive scheme.

Hedging Reserve

Gains and losses on effective hecging transactions are taken directly to the hedging -eserve.

Translation reserve

Fxchange differences arising an a monetary item that forms part of the company's net
investment in a foreign operaticn, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated in the translation reserve,

Profit and loss reserve

This represents cumulative profits or losses, net o7 dividends paid and other adjustments

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historcal experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Management consice” there to be ro signifcant accounting jucgements mpacting the
finarcial statements.

Key accounting estimates and assumpticns

In the application of the groups accounting policies the directors are required to make key
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from ather sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered 1o be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and / ar future
period as applicable.

The following are the key accounting estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
effect o1 the amounts recogrised in the financial statements
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Progression fees

The estimation of contractual payments in relation to students progressing to the
Universities from INTQO study centres is the largest estimation in the year. The key
assumptians are student volumes which inciudes the drop out rate, which has been adjusted
for the estimated COVID-19 impact, and the discounting rate which is based on the group’s
current cost of borrowing,

Useful economic lives of tangible and intangible assets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible and intangible assets is sensitive to changes in
the estimated useful ecanomic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic
lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary

1o reflect current estimates, based cn technoiogical advancement, *uture investments,
economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See Notes 9 and 10 for the
carrying amount and Principal accounting palicies for the useful economic lives for each class
of assets.

Recoverability of debtors

Dentors are d sclosed in the financial staterments net of provisions for amaur:s that are

not considered Iikely to be recovered. Thase amounts are assessed on 4 case by case basis
depenc ng on the specific facts and arcumstances pertaining to each dast, and maragement
ronsiders amounts provided to represent a prudent estimate of the amounts unfikely to

be recovered.

impairment of non-financial assets

in addition to the assessment performed above on useful ves of tangible and intangitle
assets, non-financial assets are reviewed at least annually for any indications of impairment,
and where there exists anindication that their book values may not be supported by their
value in use or resale value, an impairment is recognised.

Provisions for liabilities

The provision in the year relates 1o a charge in respect of settlement of disputes and
associated costs. Management considers these provisions 1o represent a prudent assessment
of the likely settiement and costs.

Share based payments

During the year the company recognised a total expense of £3k related to equity share
based paymentsin the year (2020, Enil) directly to the profit and loss reserve, and an
expense of £55k (2020: £73k release) related 1o cash settled share based payments within
administrative expenses (see Note 23),
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Turnover

2021 2020
£000 E'000

Geographical analysis
UK 49,874 54,867
North America 22.868 38,790
Asia 4316 6,799
77,058 100,456

Geographical analysis is based on the country in which the services are received.

All turnover is derived from services provided in relation to the provision of education and
marketing services for international students

2 Administrative exceptional items

Administrative exceptional items totalling £685k relate to & goodwill impairment of £849k, a
£554k credit in relation the release of provisions for onerous leases, an £258k charge in relation
to Irrecoverable debt from related parties, a £47 2k charge in relation (o restructuring severance
rosts, a £55k charge inrelation to cash-settled share option schemes, an £80k charge inrelation
to strategic project costs, and a £475k credit in relation 1o the release of provisions on disputes.

In the prior year administrative exceptional items totalling £5,662k related to a £5,880k charge
and a £649k release in respect of provisions, a £48k release inrespect of strategic project
costs, a £384k charge in respect of the impairment of goodwill and a £95k charge in respect of
consultancy and legal costs on projects aborted due to COVID-19 impacts

3 Otherincome

2021 2020
E'000 £000
Government grants 1,052 607

Other income represents amounts received in respect of the government’s Coronavirus Job
Support Scheme and is recognised as the amounts become due
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4 Group operating (loss)/profit

The operating {loss)/profit is stated after charging.

2021 2020
g£'o00 £'000
Amortisazion of intangible fixed assets 3,134 3,178
Oepreciat on of tangible fixed assets 1617 1.238
1 255 on disposal of ntargible fixed assats 169
Loss on disposal of Tangible fixed assets 132
Operating lease charges 9,884 7765
Fareign exchange gains 285 54

The group received £693k (2020: £693k) in resepect of rental income from a third party 1o
which it sublet a property The lease agreement contains a break clause which enables either
party to exit the lease with nine months’ notice.

Services provided by the Company’s auditors

Fees payable for the audit of the company's annual 60 20
financial statements
Fees payable for other services - audit of 104 136

subsidiaries pursuant to legislation
Fees payable for other services - other advisory 30

The company’'s auditors also audit a number of the joint ventures. The audit does not indude fees
payable by the respective jaint ventures for those services

5 Prior year restatement

During the year a review was performed of the group's provisions and it was noted that amounts
provided against debt due from related part es should e offset against the related amount
within debtors and not be included in provisions for liabilities. As a result, this was corrected
within the prior year's results whizh have been restated This restatement has the effect of
reducing provisions for liabilities by £3,356k and reducing amounts due from related parties by
the same amour There s no impact on the prior years profit or loss of or the opening reserves
as at 1 August 2020,
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6 Staff costs

Staff costs comprise:

GROUP 2021 2020
E'CO0 £'000

Wages and salaries 34,203 33166
Social security costs 3,738 3317
Other pension costs 2,458 2304
40,3938 38,787

COMPANY 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Wages and salaries 3,084 3,999
Social security costs 415 567
Other pension costs 246 252
3,745 4818

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows'

GROUP 2021 2020
Number Number

Teaching 282 148
Marketing 221 201
Admission and enrolment 107 147
Administration 368 343
979 839

COMPANY 2021 2020
Number Number

Marketing 7 7
Administration 15 15
22 22

Directors’ remuneration 2021 2020
£000 £000

Directors’ remuneration consists of;

Emoluments 786 1273
Payments to defined contribution persion scheme 41 42
B27 1315

There were 2 directors ir ke campany's defined contricution pension scheme during <he year
{2020: 2).
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6 Staff costs (continued)

The emoluments of the highest paid director in the year were £374k (2020: £606k). Payments

to defined contribution pension schemein respect of the highest peid director were E15k

(2020 £nil). Key management personnel are considerad to be directors only and thereforeis

disclosed above.

7 Netinterest and similar charges

GROUP 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Unrealised exchange losses {4,226} (2210}
Bank interest payable (23) {305)
Bank interest receivable 1 103
Loan interest receivable from related parties 1115 1,158
Loan interest payable to related parties (120) (64)
Other interest payable and similar charges (724) (167)
Gther interest receivable and similar credits 478 50
{3.499}) (1.435)

SHARE OF JOINT VENTURES’ 2021 2020
£'000 £000

Unrealised exchange gains / {losses) 1 4
Bank interest receivable 1 55
Loaninterest payable to related parties {783} (770)
Other interest receivable and similar credits 9 38
{772} (663)
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2021 2020
£'000 £'000
a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on losses/prefits for the year) (1.423) 2218
Foreign corporat-on tax on profits of e year 48 (832)
Tax charge relating to the prior period (625) (B65)
Total current tax {credit)/charge (2,000} 421
Deferred tax:
Effect of changes in the 1ax rate
Origination and reversal of tempo-ary differerces (85) 404
Tax credit relating 1o the prior period 110 (17
Totaf deferred tax credit 25 38/
Tax on profit on ordinary activities including (1,975} BOB
share of joint venture taxation
b} Factors affecting the total tax charge
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities befare taxation (25,091} 7710
Tax caiculated at the domestic UK rate applicable (4,767) 1,465
(2021 19%, 2020: 15%)
Effects of;
Expenses not deductible 1,835 564
fncome not taxable (726) 40
Adjustments in respect of foreign tax rates 28 25
Drference in tax rates (265) (508)
Deferred tax not recognised 2,435 104
Prior year adjustment (515} (B883)
Total tax charge {1,975) 808

€) Factors that may affect future tax charges:
Deferred tax has been recognised at a rate of 19%. Deferred tax was recognised at a rate of 19%
at 31 July 2020

Decuctble temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has
been recognised total £7,854k (2020: £5,154k). This asset has not been recognised in the
financia stazements due 1o current urcertainties surrounding the reversal of the under.y ng
differences Ths deferred tax 2sset would be recaoverad if there were future taxabie prohts from
which the reversal o the underlying differerce couic be deducted.

No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries as the group
can control the timing of any dividends payable.
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9 Intangible assets

Goodwill Agency Computer Assets under

relationships software course of

construction

£'000 £000 £'000

Cast

At 1 August 2020 7,701 1331 10912 855 20,799
Additions - - 678 4058 4,736
Acquisition of a subsidiary {see Note 24) - - 624 - 624
Maovement in cantingent consideration {68) - - - 68

Reclassification from tangible assets - - 819 (819}
Disposals - - {466} (2,535} {3,001}
Foreign exchange (375) (54) (29) - (458)
At 31 July 2021 7.258 1,277 12,538 1,559 22,632

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 August 2020 3606 487 5399 - 9497
Charge 475 145 2514 - 3134
Impairment 848 - - - 849
Disposals - - (297) - (297)
Foreign exchange (120) 2%) {7 - (151)
At 31 July 2021 4,810 608 7,609 - 13,027

Net book value
At 31 July 2021 2,448 669 4,929 1,559 9,605

At 31 July 2020 4,085 844 5513 855 11,307

Disposals include software developed by the group's subsidiaries that is sold 1o the group’s
joint ventures

Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The carrying value of the gaodwill batance inciudes £2,100k in relation to the acquisition of
International Student Education Services, Inc, which has been subsequently subsumed by the
group’s direct entry business, The goodwill is being amortised aver 15 years, 7 years of which
remain at 31 july 2021.
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10 Tangible assets

Land & buildings Land & buildings Fixtures & Office
freehold leasehold fittings equipment
improvements
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost

At 1 August 2020 1032 4,943 1,808 3,154 10937
Additions - 185 262 411 858
Acquisition of subsidiary (see Nate 24) - 963 133 36 1132
Disposals - (243) (402} (40) (685}
Foreign exchange - (35} (19 (43) (87)
At 31 July 2021 1,032 5813 1,782 3,518 12,145

Accumulate depreciation

At 1 August 2020 172 1,853 9472 1507 4974
Charge for the year 21 725 356 515 1617
Disposals - {113} (400) (40) (553)
Foretgn exchange - 9 (18) (31 {58)
At 31 July 2021 193 2,556 880 2,351 5,980

Net book value
At 31 July 2021 839 3,257 902 1,167 6,165

At 31 July 2020 860 2,990 866 1.247 5,963

Depreciation is charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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11 Investments in joint ventures

GROUP 2021 2020
£'000 E'000

Share of assets

Share of current assets 41,486 52,729
Share of fixed assats 8,254 10.244
49,740 62873
Share of liabilities
Liabilities due within one year (91,8309 {105.850)
Liabilities due after more than one year {4.000)
Share of net liabilities (46,090) {42877)
Presented on the balance sheet as:
Investment in joint ventures 1.459 7441
Liabilities in respect of joint ventures (47,549) {(50,318)
{46,090} (42877
Share of turnover 44,913 101,606
Share of expenses (58,383) (100.822)
Share of operating {loss)/profit (13.470) 784

Administrative exceptional charges in the year totalling £1.21 2k related to a charge of £161k
from a provision against debts from related parties, a charge of £240k in relation to the early exit
of a property lease, a charge of £592k in ~elation 12 the imoairment of fixed assets and a charge
of £21 3k in relation 1o restructuring.

Administrative exceptional items in the prior year totaliing £40k related to @ £28k release in
respect of flocd damage and a £1 2k release in ~espect of -estructuring.

A significant joint venture 1s defined as one which represents 25% of the group's (excluding
joint ventures) gross assets, gross liabilities, turnovar or operating profit. The group’s individually
significant joint venturas are shown in Note 26.
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12 investments

Other

Investments

£'000

At 1 August 2020 150
At 31 July 2021 150

COMPANY Investment in Other

subsidiaries investments

£000 €000
At 1 August 2020 35962 104 36,066
Additions 1 - 1
At 31 July 2021 35,963 104 36,067

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying
net assets.

Afull list of the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the group can be found inNote 25.
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13 Debtors

Due within one year:

2021
£'000

2020

(Restated - Note 5)
£000

Trode debtors 21,901 14810
Amounts owed by related undertakings 43,826 46,328
Corporation Tax 817 605
Other debtors 5,430 3,794
71,974 65637
Prepayments and accrued income 14,172 24,533
Due after more than one year:
Prepayments and accrued income 9,861 5843

COMPANY

Due within one year:

Trade debtors 206 89

Amounts owed by group undertakings 6,977 5827

Amounts owed by related undertakings (Note 21} 406 270

Corporation tax 122

Deferred tax 219

Other debtors 74 50
8,004 6,236

Prepayments and accrued income 845 870

Prepayments and accrued income, for the Company, include £nil {2020: £nii) falling due after

mare than one year.

Amounts owed by related undertakings are as disclosed in Note 21 are unsecured and have no

fixed repayment date

Amounts owed by related parties for the group is stated net of a £7,533k provision for related

party bad debts (2020 £3,356k (restated - see Note 5)).

Trade debtors for the company is stated net af a £nil provision for bad debts (2020 £nif).
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14 Creditors

GROUP 2021 2020
£000 £'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Loans due within one year {see Nate 16) 514
Trade creditors 7,709 6,059
Amounts owed to related undertakings 3,147 5382
Deferred tax 14 -
Other taxation and social security 3,022 2828
Other creditors 7,156 4,938
21,562 19,307
Accruals 13,519 8045
Deferred income 31,417 19156
44,936 27201

Loans due within one year represent the elements of the facilities shown in Note 16 that are
repayable within one year.

COMPANY 2021 2020

E'000 £'000
Trade creditors 295 25
Amounts owed to group undertakings 5,464 6,565
Amounts owed to related undertakings 27 1.139
Corporation tax - 1015
Other taxation and social security 355 179
Other creditors 335 465

7,476 9389
Accruals 1,381 313
Deferredincome 236 281

1,617 554

Amounts owed to group and related undertakings are unsecured and have no fixed
repayment date.
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15 Provisions for liabilities

Potential
settlement of

disputes
£000

Amounts falling due within one year:

At August 2020 (Restated - Note 5) 4862 191 5,053
Charged 397 180 577
Utilised - -

Released to statement of comprehensive income (2,762} (3) (2.765)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 24) - 1,897 1,997
At 31 July 2021 2,497 2,365 4,862

Amounts falling due after more than ane year:

At1 August 2020 1,541
Charged 34
Released to statement of comprehensive income {127)
Foreign exchange )]
At31 july 2021 1,439

COMPANY Potential
settlement of

disputes
£'000

Amounts falling due within one year:

At 1 August 2020 3,697 141 3,838
Charged 452 - 452
Utilised - - -
Released to statement of comprehensive income (2,687) (75} (2,762)
At 31 July 2021 1,462 66 1,528

Provisions for the Company, include £nit (2020: £nil) falling due after more than one year,

Other provisions of £2,365k at 31 |uly 2021 relate to provisions for agreed maintenance on
properties and other professional costs.

Provisions for liabitities at 31 July 2021 faliing due after more than one year comprise costs
of dilapidations

Provisions falling due within one year as at 1 August 2020 have been restated as disclosed in
Note 5.

The directors consider that the provisions cover their best estimate of the likely settlement and
costs ineach case,
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16 Creditors; amounts falling due after more than one year

GROUP

Long term

Loans due after one year

2021
£000

142

2020
£'000

10,704

The table below details Ioan facilities used by the group

Ameunt outstanding

Facility Security Interest rate 2021 2020
£000 £'000
Revolving credit facility Charge over the company's 2.05%-28% plus LIBOR 10,080
assets as disclosed inNote 20 dependent on leverage
Schoof Apply Loan Notes Guaranteed by INTO University 5% couponrate 514 550
payable (see Note 14) Partnership Ltd as part of the
acquisiticn of Schoal apply AG
Commercial mortgage loan Charge against the freehold 3.8% above the HSBC Bank plc 142 154
agreement property of the group Sterling Base rate
656 10,704
The maturity of long term borrowings is as follows'
GROUP 2021 2020
E'000 £'000
Between 2 and 5 years 142 10,704

17 Analysis of changes in net funds

At 1 August 2020 Acquisitions  Foreign Exchange Gther At 31]uly 2021
{Note 24) £'000 £'000

£'000 £000 E'000
Cash at bank and in hand 28992 1,013 (290) {8,253 20,462
Borrowings (10.704) - - 10,048 (656)
Net funds 18,288 1,013 (290} 795 19,806

COMPANY At 1 August 2020 Foreign Exchange Other At 31 july 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 189 (1) 12 200
Net funds 189 (1) 12 200
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18 Financial Instruments and hedging reserve

On 13 December 2019 the group entered into a number of forward currency contracts in order

1o mitigate the foreign exchange risk arising on US dollar receipts in respect of marketing fees
receivable from its joint ventures These contracts commit the group to purchasing an amount of US
dol ars at a pre agreed excnange rate at a fixed point in time, interded to match the timing and the
amount of the receipt of marketing fees from US joint venture entities.

Due to their regular nature and the fact that they are from related entities, management considered
these fees to represent highly probably forecast transactions at the time of entering into the
contract. However due to theimpact an cash flow of the joint venture entities of CCVID 15, a
proportion of these fees were not settled at the expected time, and as a result the hedges were
cons dered to be ineffective

Contracts in force during the year and at the year end are as follows

Maturity date USD to be paid GBP to be Effective Gain / (loss) Fair value as at
received rate on ineffective 31 July 2021
element
$'000 £'000 £°000 £000
30 Qctober 2020 785 590 13296 {20}
29 January 2021 2,240 1680 1.3336 30
31 March 2021 1,445 1082 1.3350 45
28 May 2021 1,056 790 13365 33
30 July 2021 2,250 1681 1.3385 56
29 October 2021 582 434 13412 16

144 16
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19 Called up share capitat - Group and Company

Allotted, called up and fully paid 2021 2020
£'000 £000
67,500,000 Al Ordinary Shares of £0.01 each 675 675
22,500,000 B1 Ordinary Shares of £E0.01 each 225 225
27,788,800 Deferred Shares of £E0.0L cach 228 278
5,946,106 (2020: 7,433,758) C Ordinary Shares of 60 75
£001 each
100,000 B Ordinary Shares of £E0.01 each 1 1
1,000,000 E Ordinary Shares of £E0.01 each 10 10
4,044,106 (2020: 5,591,758) F Ordinary Shares of 40 56
£0.01 each
1,239 1.270

Al Ordinary Shares:

The Al ardinary shares carry one vote on a written resoluticn and one vote on a resolution on a poll
taken at a meeting The holders of the Al ordinary shares also have the right to vote on a resolution
on a show of hands at a meeting. On a distribution of capital, the holders of AL ordinary shares

are entitled to participate in accordance with the formulae set outin the Cempany's articles of
association. The Al ordinary shares are not redeemable.

B1 Ordinary Shares:

The B1 ordinary shares carry one vote on g written resolution and one vote on & resolution on

a poll taken at a meeting The holders of the B ordinary shares also have the right to vote on a
resolution on a show of hands at a meeting. On a distribution af capital, the holders of B1 ordinary
shares are entitled to participate in accordance with the formulae set out in the Company's articles
of assocation. The BL ordinary shares are not redeemable,

Deferred Shares:

The Deferred shares do not carry any rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
generdl meeting of the Company or to receive a copy of or to vote onany written resolution of
the Company. The holders of Deferred shares are not entitled to participate in any dividend or
capital distribution. The Deferred shares are not redeemable.

C. D, € and F Ordinary Shares:

The €, B, E and F ardinary shares do not carry any rights to receive notice of or 1o attend or vote at
any general meeting of the Campany or to receive a copy of or 1o vote on any written resoiution
of the Company. The C, D, E and F ordinary shareholders will not have any rights to participate

in any distribution of capital upon winding up exceptin accordance with the formula set out in

the Company’s articles of assaciation. The C, [, £ and F ardinary shares are not redeemable. The

F shares ssuec in the year mirror the benefits of the Cshares other than parucipat.ng inany
distribution in the event of a partial sale. During the year a charge of £8,686 was incurred buying
back 1,547,652 “C" shares and 1,547,652 “F" shares forfeited by employees leaving the company

See Note 23,
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20 Financial commitments

The “ollowing reflects the mimimum tatal future commitments under operating leases for the
group companies, analysed by the remaining uncancellable lease term:

GROUP 2021 2020
E£000 £'000

Land and Buildings:

Within one year 10,549 7,768
Betwee" two years ard five years 41,330 27,550
After five years 199,470 16,073
251,349 51431

COMPANY 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

tand and Buildings:

Within one year 334 573

Betweer two vears and five years - 334

After five years - -
334 907

The lease payments recognised as an expense in the year are £9,884k (2020 £7,765k).

There are debentures over assets held in INTO University Partnerships Limited, INTO Manchester
Limited, INTO London Warld Education Centra Limited, Delta Language Training & Consuttancy
Limited, INTO London MDX Street LLP. Friars 607 Limited, Newincro 1306 Limited, Newincce
1183 Limited and INTQ USA LP in relation to a three year Revolving Credit Facility in place with
HSBC PLC. In addition, there is a Security Agreement in place with IUPZ LLP in relation to the
same credit facility which grants security over its assets other than those related to INTO UEA
LLP. As at 31 July 2021 none of the £40m revolving credit facility was drawn (2020: £10m).
During the year the assets of INTO Newcastle University LLP were added to the debenture.

As part of the Schoolapply AG acquisition in 2020, INTD University Partnerships Limited
guaranteed to existing bond holders payment of $750k when the bonds matured in September
2021 These bonds were settled subsequent to the year end.



Bacusign Envelope ID: 4D5CFC78-250E-4ED1-80BF-B64C2B791895
5C INTO UNIVERSITY PARTNERSHIPS LIMITED

21 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemptions availabie under FRS 102, not to disclose
any transactions or balances with entities that are L00% controlled by INTO University
Partnerships Limited.

The fundamental core of the group's business model is entering into joint venture partnerships

with leadirg Universities 1o furmish overseas studants witn the requisite qualifications ta erte-

onto undergraduate or postgraduate courses at those establishments. The group provides
Management and Corporate Services to these partrerships.

{uring the year the group entered inta the following transactions with related parties, and had
the following balances at year end’

2021 2021 2020
£°000 £'000 £000

2020
£000

Purchases Debtor/ Sales  Purchases

{Creditor)

2020
£000
Debtor /
{Creditor)

Relationship

INTO UEALLP 3,972 55 373 4376
INTO University of Exeter LLP 4,795 12 21 4,686
INTO Newcastle University LLP See below 5917
INTO Scatland LLP 137 - 2,100 1149
INTO Queen's LLP 3,289 24 1,435 3611
INTOCity LLP 5,005 93 (2.147) 1,592
INTO Gloucestershire LLP {459) 89 - 34
INTG USF inc 3,610 451 447 4,388
INTO Oregon State University inc 5.746 376 2931 5826
INTC CSU LLC 1,633 10 4,808 1,936
INTO Marshall LLC 502 15 4,488 1291
INTO Mason LLC 2,450 1,518 3,207 2,995
INTO New York at Drew LLC 926 5 5,459 1324
INTO Stirling LLP 1,448 67 4,010 1.575
Newcastle University INTO See below 2,897
London LLP

INTOSLU LLC 2,002 179 - 2,348
INTOUAB LLC 891 - 4,488 1,062
INTC Washington State 2425 14 3,305 31498
University LLC

INTCHilingis State University LLC 514 49 3,179 2714
INTO Suffolk LLC 2672 895 3,490 2.695
Espalier Ventures Limited 50 - 74 31

43
10
18

949
{27
53
17
42
310
38
182
48
14

55

(e}
146

1.340

272
(1137}
(1.268)

2095
1282
(2344)
885
(633)
1.430
4544
4356
1896
5746
2747
5408

3496
4893
1873

3,365
2017
23

50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group

50% owned by INTO Group
until 25 Novernber 2020
{see below)

50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTG Group
50% owned by INTC Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTC Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTC Group

50% owned by INTG Group
until 25 November 2020
(see betow)

50% owned by INTQ Group
50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group

50% owned by INTO Group
50% owned by INTO Group

Parent Company of the
INTO Group
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21 Related party transactions (continued)

As described in Note 24, the group increased its shareholding in INTO Newcastle University

LLP 10 51% and assumed control of the LLP in December 2020, As a result, the results of this
entity were henceforthinduded within the cansolidated results of the group, and the group has
taken advantage of the exemptions available within FRS 102 not 1o disclose transactions and
balances with that entity. Prior to that date the group made sales of £1,770k to INTO Newcastle
University LLP ir the financ a year.

As also described in Note 24 the group disposed of its 50% shareholding in Newcastle University
London LLP at the end of November 2020, From that date the entity ceased to be a related party
10 the group and therefore no disclosures of transactions are therefore required. Prior To that
date the groua made sales of £2,490k to Newcastle University Lordon LLP in the financ al year,
and purchases of £3k from the entity.

22 Ultimate controlling party

The company’s immediate parent and ultimate parent undertaking is Espalier Ventures Limited, a
company registered in the United Kingdom. The ultimate controlling party is A | Colin,

Accordingly, the largest and smallest group into which the results of the company are
consclidated, as 27 31 july 2021, is Espalier Ventures Limited. These financial statements are
avel able o the public and may 2e obtained from the registered office at One Gloucester Place,
Brighton, BN1 4AA,

23 Share-based payments

The company has a Management Incentive Plan ("MIP") where certain key employees and
Directors have been awarded C D, £ and F shares in the company.

Details of the shares awarded are as follows:

Total number of

shares awarded £000
| B Sykes 741,721 7
S G Smale 2186219 27
DS Eastwood 258,000 2
| CLatham 1,796,868 18
All other qualifying staff 6,107.454 61
Total 11,090,212 110

The shares will vest on a Share Sale or Capital Return. Subiect to the vesting conditions, the
amount available for distribution to the shareholders is based on a defned hurdle share value.
The value of the shares when the capital distribution amount exceeds the hurdle share value is
determined using a formula defned in the Articles o Assaciation of the company

During the year no shares were granted or exercised 1,547 652 "C" shares and 1,547,652 "F
shares were forfeited in the year. The value of the shares is determined using a capitalisation
of earnings rmethod which encapsulates the growth prospects and risks related to the future
earnings, Costs are recognised over the duration of the vesting period. The company recognised
a 1otal expense of £9k related to equity share based payments in the year (2020 £nil], and an
expense of £55k (2020 £7 3k release) related to cash settled share based payments.
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24 Acquisition and disposals

In December 2020 the group acquired an additional 1% shareholding in INTO Newcastle
University LLP. which took the group's overall shareholding to 51%. As part of the agreement
relating to this purchase certain amendments were made 1o the LLP agreement which meant
that, in the opininn of management, the LLP is now under the control of the group.

The group has therefore used acquisition accounting to account for the purchase, and the results
of the LLP have been tonsolidated into the group's results from that date.

The following taoles sat out the fair values of the identifiable assets and | ahiities acquired

£000
Tangible assets 1,132
Intangible assets 624
Cash and cash equivalents 1,013
Trade and other debtors 8494
Trade and other creditors {10,080}
Provisions for liabilities {1,997}
Net liahilities acquired (814)

No conside-ation was paid as aresult of this transactior. The effect of the transaction within the
groua financial statemants was to dispose of the group's share of liablities in jeint ventures of
£407k and acquire net habilines of £415«, generating a loss of £8k that was taker 1o the profit
andioss account,

In acquiring the 519% shareholding, the accounting gave rise to a non-controlling interest in the
balance sheet of £399k, representing the 49% halding of the minority shareholder in the LLP

At the end of November 2020 the group also disposed of its interest in Newcastle University
INTG London LLP (which subsequently changedits name to Newcastle University London

LLP). The disposal gave rise to zero consideration. At the disposal date the group's share of the
net habilities of this enzity was £3,958k anc therefore a profit on disposa of £3,958k was
recogn sed on that date, which reflectad the ongoing 1ease commitments of the group i~ relation
to the London shace.
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25 Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the group

The subsidiaries and joint ventures of the group are shown below together with details of their
main activities.
Holding Main activities

Directly held subsidiary undertakings Country / State

of incorporation

INTO Manchester Limited (Registered No. 06438137 ~ (1} England & Wales  100% Educational services

Celta Language Training & Consultancy Limited (Registered No. 02576005} * England & Wales  100% Educational services

(L}

Friars 607 Limited {Registered No. 06885738) * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

IUP East Anglia Limited (Registered No. 06296000} * (1) England & Wales  100% Inyestment holding Company

INTO Exeter Limited (Registered No. 05980246) * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

INTO Newtastle Limited (Registered No, 06030536} * (1} England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

Newincco 821 Limited (Registered No. 06556353} * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

Newincco 921 Limited (Registered No. 06858769) * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

Newincco 922 Limited (Registered No, 06858821) * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

INTO Medical Limited (Registered No. 07601122) * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment holding Company

INTO UOG Limited (Registered No. 08404156) * (1) England & Wales  100% lnvestment holding Comparny

INTO University Partnerships {Asia) Limited (2} Hong Kong 100% Educational services

IUP 2 LLP (Registered No OC376452) * (1) England & Wales  100% Provision of corporate services

Newincco 1183 Limited {Registered No. 08068260) = (1) England & Wales  100% Dormant

Newincco 1306 Limited {Registered No 09083887 * (1) England & Wales  100% Investment hoiding Company

INTGGP LP (3) Delaware, USA 100% Investment hoiding Company

INTO Newcastle Line East Property Limited (Registered No. 09061 279) * (1) England & Wales  100% Development of building
projects

INTO York Property Limited (Registered Mo 08848481) * (1) England & Wales  100% Cevelopment of building
projects

INTG MAS Limited (Registered No. 09738488) * {1) England & Wales  100% Educational services

MAS Education SAS (4) Colombia 100% Educational services

MDX Street Former Member Limited (Registered No. 09382151) ** (1) England & Wales  100% Dormant

Espalier Property Project 004 Limited (Registered No. 07331859 * (1) England & Wales  100% Other letting and operating of
own or leased real estate

Espalier Property Project 005 Limited (Registered No. 07331899) * (1) England & Wales  100% Othes letting and operating of

own or leased real estate
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25 Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the group {continued)

Indirectly held subsidiary undertakings Country / State  Holding Main activities

IUP Asia Limited (2} Hong Kong 100% Educational services

INTO TEFL Limited (Registered No 07268199)* (1) England & Wales  100% Educational services

INTO London MODX Street LLP (Registered No. OC345266) * {1} England & Wales  100% Educational services

INTO Clina Liniled {2) Hong Kong 100% Educational services
Guangzhou INTO Education Limited (5} China 100% Educational services

INTC London World Education Centre Limited (Registered No. 07956509 * (1) England & Wales  100% Educational services
INTOUSALP(3) Delaware, USA 100% Investment holding Company
INTO North America Inc (3) Delaware, USA 100% Provision of corporate services
International Student Education Services, Inc (6) Delaware, USA 100% Educational services

INTO UK Service Centre Limited ** {1) England & Wales  100% Dormant

INTO Global Service Centre Limited (2) Hong Keng 100% Educational services
Newincco 1184 Limited *= (1) England & Wales  100% Dormant

INTO USF LP (7} Delaware, USA 100% Investment holding Company
University Access Services HK Limited {2} Hong Kong 100% Educational services

DPU Global Limited (2} Hong Kong 100% Educational services

Suzhcu INTQ Business Consulting Co., Ltd (22) China 100% Educational services

DPU {Shanghai) Business Consulting Co., Ltd (23} China 100% Educational services

INTO Long Istand LLC (24) New York, USA 100% Educational services
Schoolapply AG (25) Switzerland 100% Educational services
University Access Centre Vietnam Company Limited (26} Vietnam 100% Educational services
Schoolapply Inc (27) Delaware, USA 100% Educational services

Into Australia Pty Limited {£8) Australia 100% Investment holding Company
Into Perth Pty Limited (28) Australia 100% Educational services

into Education India Private Limited (29) India 100% Educational services

Into {Malaysia) SON. BHD. {30} Malaysia 100% Educational services

INTO Newcastle University LLP {1) England & Wales  51% Educational services

of incorporation
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25 Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the group {continued)

Indirectly held interests in joint ventures Country / State  Holding Main activities

of incorporation

INTOUEALLP(8) England & Wales  50% Educaticnal services
INTO University of Exeter LLP (1) England & Wales  50% Educational services
INTO Scotland LLP {9} Scotland 50% Educaticnal services
INTO City LLP (1) England & Wales  50% kducational services
INTO Queens LLP (10} Northerniretand  50% Educational services
iINTO Oregon State University Inc (11) Delaware, USA 50% Educational services
INTO USF Inc (7) Delaware, USA 50% Educational services
INTOCSULLC{12) Colorada, USA 50% Educaticnal services
INTO Marshall LLC {13) West Virginia, 50% Educational services
USA
INTO New York at Drew LLC (14) Celaware, USA 50% Educational services
INTO Masen LLC(15) Virginia, USA 50% Educational services
INTO Stirling L1LP {16} Scotland 50% Educational services
INTOSLULLC (1A Delaware, USA S0% Educational services
INTOUABLLC (18) Alabama, USA 50% Educational services
INTO Washington State University LLC{19) Washington, USA  50% Educational services
INTO Suffoik LLC (ZO) Delaware, USA 50% Educational services
INTO llinois State University LLC (21} lHinois, USA 50% Educational services
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25 Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the group {continued)

&

Lo by

w o o~ M

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

exemat from the requirements of the Companmes Aot elatirg 1o the aadit of irdivideal finarc.al statemerts 2y virtue
of s479A

exemat from the requirsments of the Lompan es ACT eatirg 1o The aadit of individual f.nant a statemerts Jy wirtue
of s354A ir -espect of Dermant Comoanies

Regstered add-ess, One, Gloucester Place, Brighton, BNT £2A47

Registered add-ess, Un t 10G7, 10/F, W ng 01 Kowlcon Jente, Na 34% Nathat Read. [ordar. Kowloon, Ho~g Korg
Reg stered 4di-ess, Suite 1050, 7G1 B Street, San iegn, (A 92101

Peg stered add-ess. Carreia 15, No 88 64. Edificio Terre Zimma. Oficra 707 Bogota, Cundiramarca, 11011 Colorrbia
Reg stered add-ess, Ofice 2002, Teem Tower, Teemal . 2CB Tanhe Road, Tianhe Distict Guangzhol, 51C620 PR
Crung

Reg stered add-ess Suite 305, 1610 Medical O ve, Pottsicwn, PA, 19464

Reg stered gdd-ess, 4202, Last Fowler Averie, Tampa. FL, 33620

Reg.stered addess' The Registry, Univers:ty of East Angra Norwich Norfok, NR& 7T,

Regstered address Glasgow Caledoniar Unwersity, Tre Britairia Burdirg, Towsaddens Road, Llasgow, Strathe yre,
04 OBA

Reg stered add-ess 2-8 Lernoxvale, Belfast, Co. Anuim, BT9 5BY

Repstered address 1701 Sw Western Sivd, Corvallis, OR 97333

Reg-stered addiess' 150 0ld Mair Drive, Fort Callns, CO, 80523

Reg stered address, One JoPn Maishal Brive, Huntirgton, Wi, 25755

Reg stered add-ess 26 Madisor Avenue, Mad snn, NJ, 07940

Repstered add ess, 4352 Mascn Pong Dnve, Farfax, wA, 22030

Repstered add-ess Unvers ty of Stifling, Strling. F<S 4LA

Reg stered add-ess Suite 110, Beracha Hall, 3721 Laclede Averce, St Lou s, MO, H3108

Reg stered add-ess' F oo~ 2,917 13th Stree: Scute Brmingnam, &L, 35294

Reg stered addess L3 K-uegal ball, Pulivar, WA, 99164

Reg-stered address: 13th = ocr. 73 Tremont Street, destor MA 02108

Reg stered add-ess, 304 S Jriversity St f el Hall Norma- 1. 5171

Reg stered add-ess, 110/111. Black 17, Wentw ?'aza, SLzaoa Dasha Lake Scierce Ed_cat on ard lnnovanion Jstrct
Reg stered address. Reorr H, Fleer 17, Heng) Plaza, No 99 Zast Huamai Read, Stanghai 200021 CN

Regp stered addiess C/0 Cerpotauion Service Company, 80 Stat Street, Aibary, New York, 12208

Reg stered addess Bahrhofstrasse 7. CH-6300 Zug . Switzerland

Reg stered address: Grourd F oo- and Mezzanie, Anh Mirh Tower, No 56 Nguyer Diah CF eu Seet, Da <ac watd,
Distvict 1, He Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Reg-stered address' Carparatior Service Compary. 251 L ttte 7 alls Drve, Wilmington, New Cast e, DE 19808

Reg stered address Level 27, 2 The Esolanada, Pe: tn, Western Australia WA BGCO, Australia

Reg stered add-ess, 623, 670 Floar, Commercial Complex, DLF Tower-2, |aso o, SeLth Dell, India 110025

Reg stered address, Un 1 30-01. Leve! 30, Tower A, vertical Business Suite Avenae 3 Bargsas Scuth Mo 8 Jaar
Kenrchi, Kuala Limpur. Ma aysia
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26 financial information for individually significant joint ventures
of the group

INTO UEA LLP 2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Share of assets

Share of current assets 3,812 1,001

Shae of fixed assets 589 613
4,431 4,614

Share of liabilitias

Liabilities due within one year (4,222) (4,576)

Liabiities due after ane year {2,500}

Share of net (liabilities) / assets {2,291) 38

Share of turnover 4,052 7416

Share of operating (loss} / profit for the (2,501) ’8

financial year

INTO SLU LLP 2021 2020
£000 £'000

Share of assets

Share of current assets 1,239 1,143

Share of hixed assets 205 258
1,445 1401

Share of fiabilities

Liabilities due within one year (1,343) {5.003)

Share of net assets / (liabilities) 102 (3.602)

Share of turnover 1,384 2,380

Share of operating profit / (loss) for the 3,417 (757)

financial year

27 Subsequent events

St Louis University strategic review
Subsequent 1o the year end, INTO's shareholding in INTO SLU LLC increased te 100%.

Corsequently, the entity will be accountad for as a subsidiary in the subsequent year's financial

statements, from 1 August 2021
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For more information visit intoglobal.com or contact us:

North America

INTD University Partnerships
8910 University Center Lane
Sulte 400

San Diego, CA 92122

T: +1 858 356 4400

[ @intoglobal

Europe, Middle East and Africa

INTC Univearsity Partnerships
One Gloucester Place
Brightan, East Sussex

BN1 4AA, United Kingdom
T +44 (0)1273 865200

f www.linkedin.com/company/into-university-partnerships

INTO®

Asia

INTO University Partnerships
Unit 1067, 10/F

Wirg On Kowloon Centre
345 Nathan Road

Jordan, Hong Kong

1. +852 210 56800

€ INTO University Partnerships Ltd, December 2021, All content published in this document is believed accurate at time of
publication. INTQ reserves the right to alter details of all aspects of its operation without natice.

UP 2 LLP is a timited llability partnership registered in England and Wales, registered number 0C376452. Registered office:

One Gloucester Place, Brighton, East Sussex, BN1 4AA, UK.




